ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 12, 2003
1:33 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Fred Dyson, Chair
Senator Lyda G een
Senator Gary W/ ken
Senat or Bettye Davis
Senat or Gretchen Cuess

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
Confirmation Hearing:

Comm ssi oner, Department of Health and Social Services - Joel
G | bertson

CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED
SENATE BILL NO 25
"An Act relating to the teachers' housing |loan program in the
Al aska Housing Finance Corporation; and providing for an
effective date.”

HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
SB 25 - No previous action to record.

W TNESS REG STER

Commi ssi oner - desi gnee Joel G | bertson
Department of Health &
Soci al Servi ces
PO Box 110601
Juneau, AK 99801-0601
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Gave a short overview of his departnent.

Ms. Sheil a Peterson

SENATE HES COW TTEE -1- February 12, 2003



Staff to Senator W ken

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Staff to sponsor of SB 25.

M . Dan Fauske, Executive Director

Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Corporation (AHFC)
Depart ment of Revenue

PO Box 101020

Anchor age, AK 99510-1020

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comrented on SB 25.

M . Paul Kapansky, Mortgage Qperations Director
Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Cor poration (AHFC)
Departnent of Revenue

PO Box 101020

Anchor age, AK 99510-1020

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comment ed on SB 25.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
TAPE 03-1, SIDE A

CHAI R FRED DYSON cal l ed the Senate Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Conmittee neeting to order at 1:33 p.m All
menbers were present. As the first order of business, he asked
Comm ssi oner-DI SI GNEE Joel Gl bertson to join the committee.

COWMM SSI ONER- DI SI GNEE JOEL G LBERTSON, Departnment of Health and
Soci al Services (DHSS), said his departnent is very diverse and
has to work within a budget. H's primary goal is to neet the
m ssion of the departnent, which is to protect and pronpte the
wel | -being and health of all Al askans within the budget.

He said the departnent would focus on inportant issues such as
the Division of Famly and Youth Services noving through a
program inprovenent plan. He is working with the Region 10
office and the Health and Social Service Agency in Wshington

D.C. to develop that program This wll entail substantive
changes to inprove child protection services in the state to
guarantee that all reports of harm are investigated while

wor ki ng toward permanency and protecting the rights of famlies.
COWM SSI ONER- DI SI GNEE G LBERTSON said that child services are a

top priority for the Governor and that he is in the final stages
of interviewing for a new director for DFYS and plans to work

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 2- February 12, 2003



with the federal government to inplenment the inproved plan
qui ckly.

During an audit done |last year, the State of Al aska was found to
be out of conpliance with a nunber of federal standards.
Therefore, the departnent wll be working with the Medicaid
Program to address the financial concerns to make sure that care
is being delivered in an efficient nmanner throughout the state.
Fraud and abuse standards are in place to nmake sure there is
programintegrity.

Wl fare reformis continuing wwth the casel oad down 40 percent.
Cash paynents and cash assistance is down by 50 percent since

wel fare reform was initiated. He will make sure that childcare
assi stance, work training and diversion prograns are in place to
hel p people learn to help thenselves. He will be working with

the federal governnent this year on reauthorization of the
wel fare package and reviewi ng the new work standards that wl
be in place.

COMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE G LBERTSON said there are sone great
chal l enges and he is looking forward to working on themw th the
Legi sl ature.

SENATOR LYDA GREEN said the Governor nmade a comment about the
| ack of in-house auditors and asked himto address that since he
said he wanted to nove toward permanency in his departnent.

COMM SSI ONER G LBERTSON replied one of the first activities the
Governor directed all departnments to do was a departnent w de
audit of all operations. He was able to assenble a team of nine
auditors for the departnent's 2,600 enpl oyees. They were not all
trained as auditors, but he had to work with them and is
grateful for their service. Good auditing systens are needed in
all departnents to insure that the resources are going out to
deliver the services.

SENATOR GRETCHEN GUESS agreed with him on audit nechanisns and
encouraged the administration to have program auditors as well
as financial auditors, because they have different skills. She
asked if it is nore efficient for every departnment to have
auditors or to have a group of auditors that goes out to the
depart nents.

COM SSI ONER G LBERTSON replied he didn't have the answer right
now. Audit funds are being reassigned between departnents, but

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 3- February 12, 2003



there are three individuals in the Dvision of Admnistrative
Servi ces and one or two others throughout the departnent.

There is a need for additional auditors statew de.
There are benefits from having individuals who are
trained wthin each of +the departnents for that
departnent's book of business, but there are also
advantages to having centralized auditors. It's nore
efficient and independent. The adm nistration wants to
wor k towards having the nost effective audit teans.

SENATOR GUESS followed up saying that as an auditor, she found
audit skills and experiences picked up in one area could be
taken to anot her project.

SENATOR WLKEN said for the last four years the Legislature has
worked on mssions and neasures and asked if he had any
assessnents of the quality of the definition of his mssion and
t he standards agai nst which his departnment will be neasured.

COMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE G LBERTSON replied he is at the early
stage of reviewing mssions and neasures and the departnent is
focusi ng on not having m salignnment of programactivities.

1: 50 p. m

SENATOR GUESS asked what he thinks the state's role is in the
increase in health care rates in both the state and private
sectors. She also asked him to comment on the problem of the
uni nsured and how t he Legi sl ature can grapple with both issues.

COWMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE G LBERTSON responded that Alaska is not
alone in the national trend towards rising health care costs.
There are trenmendous increases in health care costs all across
the sector. Qur society has expectations on what health care
services people should receive, the quality of health care that
should be available in this country and the technology that
should be available. The associated costs are tied into risk
pools and having ways to comunity-rate health care insurance
products. This has hurt Alaska because the relatively snall
popul ati on has not allowed sonme of the insurance nodels to cone
in. The bottom line is that health care costs are higher in the
State of Al aska.

The state is a purchaser in the health care marketplace and its
costs are increasing annually. There has to be woirk on cost

SENATE HES COW TTEE -4- February 12, 2003



contai nment. There have been discussions on risk pooling, which
woul d be difficult, but he thinks it could be acconpli shed.

He said there is a national debate about how to address the
problem of the wuninsured. The admnistration is focusing on
whether care is being delivered, not if soneone is insured or
not. Billions of dollars have been invested in comunity health
centers to try to nake sure health service networks are out
there for individuals who I ack comunity based insurance options
and to make sure federal funding is a revenue stream that wl|
support the states. There are over 44 mllion uninsured
Anmericans right now and to address the solution, Al aska wll
have to becone involved on a national |evel

SENATOR GUESS asked whether the adm nistration plans to continue
to fund Denali Kid Care at current |evels.

COW SSI ONER- DESI GNEE G LBERTSON answer ed t hat t he
adm nistration is engaged in budget discussions right now and he
is looking at ways prograns will be inpacted the |east. First,
he will make sure that levels of service are maintained, which
nmeans eligibility levels for the Medicaid Program in Denali Kid
Care. Once those options are exhausted, the departnent will have

to review the services at the state | evel

SENATOR GUESS asked if he could discuss how he would prioritize
al cohol treatnent.

COW SSI ONER- DESI GNEE G LBERTSON responded there is a trenendous
probl em wi th substance abuse in Al aska and the Governor is aware
of it. Wile in Wshington D.C., he focused on inhalant and
al cohol abuse for juveniles in rural Alaska. Currently the
departnment is discussing what to do with the revenues from the
al cohol tax. It is a priority to have alcohol treatnent options
available for individuals that are court ordered to undergo
al cohol and substance abuse treatnment and who are in the DFYS
system where the state is incurring additional expense in trying
to stabilize famlies. Another priority is to have alcohol
treatment prograns in rural areas where they are totally |acking
NOW.

He said that <child protection is one of the departnent's
obj ectives along with making sure alcohol funds are invested in
ways that support ot her program activities wthin the
depart nent .

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 5- February 12, 2003



SENATOR GUESS requested that the adm nistration make those funds
a priority for pregnant wonmen and related an instance she knew
of in Anchorage where a pregnant woman had to wait six weeks for
al cohol treatnment. She agreed with his priorities and noted that
Fetal Al cohol Syndrone/Fetal Al cohol Effects (FASFAE) has been
federally funded for nost of the five-year term She asked him
to comment on that funding.

COWMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE G LBERTSON replied FASFAE is a nationw de
probl em but Al aska and South Dakota have the highest incidence.
Senat or Stevens arranged funding for a five year FASFAE program
and it is now in the fourth year. The departnent is entering
into the application stage of that work and he infornmed them
that a lot of the funding in the early years was used for
research - finding out sone of the social condi tions
denographics and health indicators that should be targeted to
prevent the next generation of individuals from fetal al cohol
exposure. As they gather the data and continue to go through
program desi gn and operations, there needs to be a transition to
using a greater nunber of resources for prevention efforts and
interventions. He said it has been a good and well directed
effort so far. Research has shown a trenendous |ink between
femal es who are sexually assaulted when underage and those who
have children born with fetal alcohol syndrome. "W're at the
stage right now where there can be true inplenentation of trying
to | ook at sone of the behavioral risks."

CHAI R DYSON sai d he appreciated Conm ssi oner-desi gnee G| bertson
taking on the job and that he brought sone amazing credentials
to it. He asked if he had seen the audits from DFYS and
Legi sl ati ve Budget and Audit (LB&A) that show areas of concern
Last year the Legislature passed |egislation requiring that each
departnment's budget be prioritized and asked if that is going to
be a problemfor him

COWMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE G LBERTSON said if the departnent is asked
to do that it wll, but it already is doing that in the process
of submtting a budget the Governor supports and will defend.

CHAI R DYSON stated that at sone point he would ask if juvenile
justice should continue as a part of the Departnment of Health
and Soci al Services as opposed to the Departnment of Corrections.
He then asked if it is his or this admnistration's view that
everyone shoul d have heal th insurance.

COW SSI ONER- DESI GNEE G LBERTSON replied the Governor is focused
on what is realistic and achievable and that isn't achievable in

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 6- February 12, 2003



the next 2 - 4 years. The adm nistration is conmtted to working
with the private sector, insurance conpanies and risk pools in
the state to mke sure they nmaximze opportunities for
individuals to purchase an insurance product. They want to work
with welfare roles to get people transitioned into enploynent
where there is an opportunity to have health insurance. There
are a lot of things they can do, but they can't start with an
unreal i stic goal

CHAI R DYSON asked if the ultimte goal is for everyone to have
heal t h i nsurance.

COWM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE G LBERTSON replied, "I think a good goal
is to establish a marketplace where everyone has an opportunity
to purchase into an insurance product...if they want."

CHAI R DYSON asked if it's okay for people to actually pay their
own bills.

COWMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE G LBERTSON replied, "I believe individuals
who have access to insurance product and have the ability to
purchase an insurance product should not be reverting to a
public insurance product."”

CHAI R DYSON restated his question, "What about people who just
choose to pay their bills and not have insurance?"

COWMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE G LBERTSON replied, "If they are capable,
cash payers are allowed in the system | don't think this
Governor will say you are not allowed to be a cash payer in the
heal t h i nsurance marketpl ace. "

CHAIR DYSON asked about the current policy of nost health
service providers to discrimnate on a price basis against those
who do pay their own bills as opposed to a third party payer.

COMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE G LBERTSON  replied that is a true
statenent and that has been occurring in the health system for
40 - 50 years of cost shifting. Health insurance conpanies
negoti ate below usual and customary charges and the provider
diverts charges. The Medicaid Program does that on a national
|l evel by doing fee schedules that are below the wusual and
customary charges. "That cost shifting does occur and it does
i npact i ndividuals who pay cash.”

CHAI R DYSON said, "I think it's profoundly un-Anerican, but very
pervasive."

SENATE HES COW TTEE -7- February 12, 2003



SENATOR CGREEN asked if Medicaid does the sane thing.

COWMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE G LBERTSON replied that they do, but their
schedul e i s above the Medicare fee schedul e.

CHAI R DYSON noted that he works for the National Association of
Soci al Workers.

COW SSI ONER- DESI GNEE G LBERTSON said that he too worked for
them and when he was in law school he worked in the general
counsel's office on |l egal issues for social workers.

CHAI R DYSON st at ed:

W have gone in the last five years from alnost no
prograns related to fetal alcohol syndrome to sone
experts think that we are doing better than any other
state in ternms of responding to the problem not
preventing it. | would encourage you - sone of the
people - and Diane DeSanto [and Diane Casto] - have
done an extraordinary job there and do all we can to
continue that nomentum

SENATOR GUESS said she wuld I|ike to know his and the
adm nistration's opinion on noving donestic violence and sexua
assault out of the Departnent if Public Safety into HESS.

Under full disclosure, | sit on the board of Standing
Toget her Agai nst Rape (STAR) and the sexual assault
community is very concerned about noving and hope that
you discuss it wth the comunity before the
adm ni strati on noves forward.

CHAIR DYSON noted that under full disclosure he has a foster
child that has fetal alcohol 1issues, but his concerns are
broader than that.

SENATOR BETTYE DAVI S said she appreciates the fact that he took
the time to speak to her in her office and she is |ooking
forward to working with him She is pleased to find that he
knows a little nore about the state than she anticipated. She
counseled him to let people know that he has visited rural
Al aska and sone of the hubs and let people know of his
acconplishnments and things he wants to acconplish. She asked if
he had an opportunity to look at the Children's Cabinet that was

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 8- February 12, 2003



instituted by the last Governor and if he has any plans on how
he woul d work with other departnents.

COWMM SSI ONER- DESI GNEE G LBERTSON responded that he is famliar
with the Children's Cabinet and he is now working with the
Governor on structuring children's services in the State of
Al aska as part of their conversations on m ssions and neasures
and | ooking at alignnent of prograns. Three working groups are
already fornmed and there will be nore. "Children's services wll
be seen as a top priority of this adm nistration.”

SENATOR GREEN nmade a notion to forward M. Glbertson's nanme to
the full body for consideration. There were no objections and it
was so ordered.

SB  25- AHFC LOANS TO EDUCATCORS

CHAI R FRED DYSON announced SB 25 to be up for consideration.

SENATOR GARY WLKEN, sponsor of SB 25, introduced Sheila
Peterson, his staff who was working on this issue. He said it's
a sinple bill and puts a loan program in place that allows
Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Corporation (AHFC) to | oan 100 percent of
val ue.

It requires no down paynent and can only be used for
owner - occupi ed housing. This will supply Al aska schoo

districts a tool to attract and keep qualified public
school teachers. Recruitnent and retention of a
qualified workforce is paranmount to the operation of a
successful K-12 educational program

In addition, SB 25 addresses one of the concerns highlighted in
the October 2001 Conmttee Report on the Statew de Teacher
Shortage by the House Special Commttee on Education. It states
that education professionals testified that the nunber one
reason for the statew de teacher shortage is because housing is
too expensive or non-existent. There is a $0 fiscal note. For
backup he referred the conmttee to their copy of "Teacher
Housing - Current Issues and Challenges" issued |ast year by
AHFC and the statements of support from different areas of the
state.

He said it is helpful to see what other states are doing.
California gives $15,000 to $30,000 grants to attract and retain
teachers and Santa Fe, New Mexico, has a loan program like this
one. The Al aska Bankers Association al so supports SB 25.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 9- February 12, 2003



SENATOR GRETCHEN GUESS asked if speech therapists are included.

SENATOR GARY W LKEN said he would find out, but he doesn't want
this bill to turn into a Christmas tree bill. Oher occupations
are worthy, but it would "sink under its own weight" if they are
all added. He wants to stick with the real mof education

SENATOR GUESS said she is tal king about other occupations that
fall in the counseling realm which isn't defined in the bill

SENATOR LYDA GREEN asked if the bill the Legislature passed a
couple of years ago that reduced the interest rate by 1 percent
for teachers in small communities had any effect.

TAPE 03-01, SIDE B

SENATOR W LKEN said he renenbers that to be negotiated for rura
Al aska where you could have up to a 4-plex, one of which had to
be owner occupied. He doesn't renenber if it had a teacher
qualification

MR. DAN FAUSKE, Executive Director, Al aska Housing Finance
Corporation, said there is a provision under SB 181 that covers
t hat .

MR. PAUL KAPANSKY, Mrtgage Operations Director, explained that
SB 181 becane effective October 3 and it isn't limted to 1 - 4
units, but one of the provisions is that every unit has to be
occupied by a teacher year-round. The wunits could not be
subl eased. There has been no activity wunder that program to
dat e.

CHAI R DYSON asked if lending institutions want to take the risk
for a 100 percent |oan-to-value ratio.

MR. FAUSKE said there are simlar provisions under federal |aw
as well and the risk exposure is increased, but is sonmewhat
offset by the fact that nortgage insurance is required for
anything over an 80 to 85 percent l|loan-to-value ratio. He said
they are attenpting to increase their exposure in rural areas
and thinks there would be sonme novenent.

CHAI R DYSON asked if the nortgage industry put a high rate for
nort gage i nsurance on 100 percent | oan-to-val ue | oans.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -10- February 12, 2003



MR.  KAPANSKY responded it's commobn practice in the nortgage
i nsurance industry to insure loans up to 100 percent, so it's
not unique to Alaska. H s departnment requires nortgage insurance
on all loans that are 80 to 85 percent |oan-to-value. Now the
maxi nrum | oan they can meke is 95 percent |oan-to-value. "If you
go to 100 percent, the increnental cost of the nortgage
i nsurance from covering a loan at 95 percent |oan-to-value to
100 percent |oan-to-value would not be very significant."

CHAIR DYSON said this legislation does not require the teacher
who is getting the loan to actually occupy the house. He asked
whet her the |l oans are for single famly only.

MR. KAPANSKY replied yes.

CHAI R DYSON asked Senator Wlken if he intends this for single-
famly units.

SENATOR W LKEN answered yes, with owner occupied housing. "If it
was a duplex, when | read that sentence, the owner would have to
live in both."

SENATOR GUESS suggested having the |egal departnment |ook at the
| anguage to nake sure it couldn't be interpreted any other way.
She asked if he intends this to apply to first tinme honeowners
or could they upgrade and could a teacher buy a hone and then
quit.

SENATOR W LKEN answered that if you're a teacher and buy a hone,
you're sonmewhat stable. He doubts that one would quit being a
teacher just to have this kind of |oan. He doesn't know how to
get away from people manipulating the system He said he would
ask professionals to help with that | anguage.

SENATOR GUESS asked whether this is limted to first tine
honebuyers and would it apply to people who currently own a
home, but need a | arger one.

SENATOR W LKEN replied that he doesn't intend it to be a first
time teacher hone | oan program

MR. FAUSKE pointed out that line 7 of the bill says for purchase
only, not refinance.

CHAI R DYSON asked what happens if a person quits md-term and
noves out of town or nmoves because of health reasons.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -11- February 12, 2003



MR.  FAUSKE answered, wunder the rural program if soneone
violates the covenants that the wunit nust be occupied by a
teacher and is financed with tax-exenpt financing, the |oan
woul d revert back to taxable status. They wouldn't necessarily
be found in default.

2:45 p. m

SENATOR GREEN asked if the same would apply if the person
doesn't nove, but just quits teaching.

SENATOR W LKEN responded that the interest would stay the sane
and the | oan would continue at 100 percent.

MR FAUSKE said that was correct.

SENATOR GREEN asked if the difference between her and Senator
Dyson's question is that they nove out.

SENATOR W LKEN sai d yes.

MR. FAUSKE said it would be hard to police the issue.
SENATOR CGREEN sai d she doesn't see any geographic limtation.
SENATOR W LKEN said it is statew de.

SENATOR CGREEN asked what the harm is to provide 100 percent
| oans for any profession in the state.

SENATOR W LKEN responded the harmis that there is a bill at the
end of the process that has 30 different professions and he
doesn't think the Bankers Association would want that or that it
woul d be good public policy. He said Al aska needs all the help
it can get to hire and keep good teachers and that is the
purpose for this. |If there is a crying need for another
profession, that discussion should take place at a different
tinme.

CHAIR DYSON said he thinks this bill is justifiable because
teachers very obviously serve the public good. "The entire
popul ati on and comrunity benefits from having well educated and
t hought ful people..."

He thinks that idea mght extend to nurses, as well.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -12- February 12, 2003



SENATOR GREEN asked who 1is picking up the down paynent
differential and is it all covered by nortgage insurance.

MR. FAUSKE answered that the 10 percent is reflected in the size
of the paynment and he envisions this bill helping the young
folks who are just out of college and just don't have the down
paynment .

CHAIR DYSON said he thought about inserting "single-famly"
after "owner-occupi ed”, but decided not to. Allowng a teacher-
famly to build a duplex and perhaps neke affordable housing
available to soneone else deepens their involvenent in the
comunity and their propensity to stay and adds to their ability
to make the paynents. He asked Senator W/ ken to coment.

SENATOR W LKEN responded that if it's a duplex, it would cost
approximately twice as nuch and he wonders if the exposure would
bother M. Fauske. Also, if a duplex is good, would a 4-plex be
better? He sinply envisions a teacher fam |y buying a house.

MR. FAUSKE said that discussion takes them from a single-famly
owner occupied to an investnent grade, especially beyond a
duplex. Their underwiting criteria views investnents entirely
differently. He believes the single-famly approach is safe,
al though he deals with a lot of nultifamly |oans. Affordability
woul d be a consideration.

SENATOR WLKEN comented that nothing would prevent the
Legi sl ature from expandi ng the coverage to a duplex or bigger.

MR. FAUSKE agreed that could be done.

SENATOR GREEN said she thinks that this bill could pertain to a
4-plex, since it doesn't preclude it so the drafters should
check that out.

CHAIR DYSON said they would work on a commttee substitute that
woul d include wording naking this program available to other
schools that are doing state school testing. He said there is
significant interest in reviving Covenant H gh School and other
private schools and they may not fit into the present definition
of public school.

SENATOR W LKEN added that the balance in his mnd is does it
expand the exposure for abuse versus the good it's doing. He
noted that this was originally Representative Rokeberg' s idea
| ast year.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -13- February 12, 2003



CHAI R DYSON held SB 25 for further discussion and adjourned the
neeting at 2:53 p. m

SENATE HES COW TTEE -14- February 12, 2003



